Fibrocell Science, Inc. Form 10-Q May 15, 2013 Table of Contents

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# **FORM 10-Q**

X Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013

OR

"Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

# Fibrocell Science, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its Charter.)

## Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation) 001-31564 (Commission 87-045888 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

File Number)
405 Eagleview Boulevard

Exton, Pennsylvania 19341

(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

(484) 713-6000

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the preceding 12 months (or for any shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer " Accelerated filer "

Non-accelerated filer " (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2of the Exchange Act)

Yes " No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12, 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court. Yes x No "

As of May 10, 2013, issuer had 26,229,909 shares issued and outstanding of common stock, par value \$0.001.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Part I. Financial Information	
Item 1. Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	
Consolidated Balance Sheets March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012	1
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012	2
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2013	3
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012	4
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	5
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	11
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	14
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	14
Part II. Other Information	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	15
Item 1A. Risk Factors	15
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	15
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities	15
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure	15
Item 5. Other Information	15
Item 6. Exhibits	15
<u>Signature</u>	16

#### PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

## ITEM 1. Financial statements.

## Fibrocell Science, Inc.

## **Consolidated Balance Sheets**

(amounts in thousands except per share and share data)

	Unaudited March 31, 2013	De	cember 31, 2012
Assets			
Current assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 26,186	\$	31,346
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$16 and \$25, respectively	26		62
Inventory, net	477		477
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	1,105		1,271
Total current assets	27,794		33,156
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$523 and \$434, respectively	1,670		1,658
Intangible assets and other assets, net	5,652		5,789
Total assets	\$ 35,116	\$	40,603
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity			
Current liabilities:			
Accounts payable	\$ 1,245	\$	921
Accrued expenses	355		494
Deferred revenue	145		139
Total current liabilities	1,745		1,554
Warrant liability	316		374
Other long-term liabilities	401		344
Total liabilities	2,462		2,272
Commitments Shoreholders equity:			
Shareholders equity: Common stock, \$0.001 par value; 1,100,000,000 shares authorized; 26,229,909 issued and outstanding	26		26
Common stock, \$0.001 par value; 1,100,000,000 snares authorized; 20,229,909 issued and outstanding Common stock-subscription receivable	(2,004)		(2,004)
Additional paid-in capital	112,557		112,384
Accumulated deficit	(77,925)		(72,075)
Accumulated deficit	(11,923)		(12,013)
Total shareholders equity	32,654		38,331
Total liabilities and shareholders equity	\$ 35,116	\$	40,603

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

1

## Fibrocell Science, Inc.

## **Consolidated Statements of Operations**

## (amounts in thousands except per share and share data)

## (unaudited)

			For the th	ree months ended
		For the three months ended March 31, 2013		ch 31, 2012 Restated
Revenue from product sales	\$	26	\$	16
Cost of sales		2,351		1,553
Gross loss		(2,325)		(1,537)
Selling, general and administrative expenses		2,367		3,723
Research and development expenses		1,212		479
Operating loss		(5,904)		(5,739)
Other income (expense)				
Warrant income (expense)		58		(501)
Derivative revaluation income				34
Interest expense				(249)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes		(5,846)		(6,455)
Deferred tax benefit				2,500
Loss from continuing operations		(5,846)		(3,955)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax		(4)		(7)
Net loss		(5,850)		(3,962)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest				(11)
Net loss attributable to Fibrocell Science, Inc. common shareholders.	\$	(5,850)	\$	(3,973)
shareholders.	Φ	(3,630)	Φ	(3,973)
Per share information:				
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes- basic and				
diluted	\$	(0.22)	\$	(1.69)
Income from deferred tax benefit				0.65
Net loss attributable to common shareholders per common				
share basic and diluted	\$	(0.22)	\$	(1.04)
Weighted average number of basic and diluted common shares				
outstanding		26,229,909		3,832,669

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

## Fibrocell Science, Inc.

## Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

(Amounts in thousands except share data)

	Common s Shares	tock Amount	Subscription Receivable	Additional paid-in capital	Deficit accumulated	Noncontrolling Interest	Total Equity
Balance, January 1, 2013	26,229,909	\$ 26	\$ (2,004)	\$ 112,384	\$ (72,075)	\$	\$ 38,331
Stock-based compensation expense				173			173
Net loss					(5,850)		(5,850)
Balance, March 31, 2013	26,229,909	\$ 26	\$ (2,004)	\$ 112,557	\$ (77,925)	\$	\$ 32,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

## Fibrocell Science, Inc.

## **Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows**

## (amounts in thousands except per share and share data)

## (unaudited)

	moi	For the three months ended March 31, 2013		For the three months ended March 31, 2012 Restated	
Cash flows from operating activities:					
Net loss	\$	(5,850)	\$	(3,962)	
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:					
Expense related to stock-based compensation		173		307	
Warrant income (expense)		(58)		501	
Derivative revaluation income				(34)	
Deferred tax benefit				(2,500)	
Depreciation and amortization		226		191	
Provision for doubtful accounts		(9)		(16)	
Provision for excessive and/or obsolete inventory				10	
Amortization of debt issue costs				100	
Change in operating assets and liabilities, excluding effects of acquisition and disposition:					
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable		45		(10)	
Increase in other receivables				(1)	
Increase in inventory				(348)	
Decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets		166		124	
Increase (decrease) accounts payable		324		(943)	
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other		(82)		229	
Increase in deferred revenue		6		43	
Net cash used in operating activities		(5,059)		(6,309)	
Cash flows from investing activities:					
Purchase of property and equipment		(100)		(221)	
Net cash used in investing activities		(100)		(221)	
Cash flows from financing activities:					
Payments on insurance loan				(35)	
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock				(56)	
Net cash used in financing activities				(91)	
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash balances		(1)			
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		(5,160)		(6,621)	
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		31,346		10,799	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	26,186	\$	4,178	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

4

#### Fibrocell Science, Inc.

#### **Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements**

(amounts in thousands except per share and share data)

(unaudited)

#### Note 1 Business and Organization

Fibrocell Science, Inc. (Fibrocell or the Company) is the parent company of Fibrocell Technologies (Fibrocell Tech) and Fibrocell Science Hong Kong Limited, a company organized under the laws of Hong Kong. Fibrocell Tech is the parent company of Isolagen Europe Limited, a company organized under the laws of the United Kingdom (Isolagen Europe), Isolagen Australia Pty Limited, a company organized under the laws of Australia (Isolagen Australia), and Isolagen International, S.A., a company organized under the laws of Switzerland (Isolagen Switzerland).

The Company is an autologous cellular therapeutic company focused on the development of innovative products for aesthetic, medical and scientific applications. The Company has a pipeline of therapeutic and aesthetic product development programs based on the first Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved cell-based product, LAVIV (azficel-T), in aesthetics, all of which are based on the autologous fibroblast cell. Our clinical and pre-clinical programs include treatments for restrictive burn scars, vocal cord scars, and acne scars. Through our collaboration with Intrexon Corporation, we are working to discover and develop treatments for rare collagen deficient conditions such as recessive dystrophic epidermolysis bullosa.

The Company previously marketed a skin care line with broad application in core target markets through its consolidated subsidiary, Agera, which was sold on August 31, 2012. The Company had owned 57% of the outstanding shares of Agera. As a result of the sale of Agera, the Company operates in one segment and Agera is classified as discontinued operations. Please refer to Note 5 for more details.

The Company has transitioned from its development stage to operational activities as of July 1, 2012. As such, the financial statements have been updated to reflect that the Company is no longer a development stage company.

#### Note 2 Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnote disclosures required by GAAP for complete consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The results of the Company s operations for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for any other interim period or full year.

The prior year financial statements contain certain reclassifications and restatements to present discontinued operations and also to present deferred taxation in the first quarter of 2012 in this Form 10-Q. Please refer to Notes 5 and 4 respectively for more details.

On April 29, 2013, the Company announced a reverse stock split on the basis of one share of common stock for each currently outstanding 25 shares of pre-split common stock that became effective on April 30, 2013. All common share and per-share data included in these financial statements reflect such reverse stock split.

## Note 3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and notes. In addition, management s assessment of the Company s ability to continue as a going concern involves the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash inflows and outflows. Actual results may differ materially from those estimates.

## Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

#### Intangible assets

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company launched LAVIV and as a result, the research and development intangible assets related to the Company s primary study are considered finite-lived intangible assets and are being amortized over 12 years. For the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company amortized \$138 for the intangible assets.

Finite-lived intangible assets are recorded at cost, net of accumulated amortization and, if applicable, impairment charges. Amortization of finite-lived intangible assets is provided over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. We review our finite-lived intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. There was no impairment expense recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

#### Loss per share data

Basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders per share is calculated by dividing net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. For all periods presented, the outstanding shares of common stock options, preferred and common warrants have been excluded from the calculation because their effect would be anti-dilutive. Therefore, the weighted-average shares used to calculate both basis and dilutive loss per share are the same.

5

The following potentially dilutive securities have been excluded from the calculations of diluted net loss per share as their effect would be anti-dilutive:

		Three Months Ended March 31,		
	2013	2012		
Shares of convertible preferred stock		275,280		
Shares underlying options outstanding	592,340	564,555		
Shares underlying warrants outstanding	6,132,050	1,965,498		

#### Note 4 Deferred Tax Adjustment First Quarter 2012 Restatement

During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, the Company discovered that the deferred tax liability reported in its quarters ended March 31, June 30, and September 30, 2012 consolidated financial statements was recorded incorrectly. In the first quarter ended March 31, 2012, the Company commenced amortizing the deferred tax liability over a twelve-year period to match the amortization of the related intangible. However, the full amount of the deferred tax liability should have been recorded as a deferred tax benefit in the first quarter of 2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations. This error was identified and recorded as an out-of-period adjustment in the quarter ended December 31, 2012. If the transaction was recorded in the first quarter of 2012, the deferred tax benefit would have increased by \$2.4 million from \$0.1 million to \$2.5 million and the deferred tax liability would have been zero as of March 31, 2012. The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows would have reflected a net loss of \$4.0 million and a deferred tax benefit of \$2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012. The Company has restated the first quarter of 2012 in this

Form 10-Q to reflect this adjustment.

#### **Note 5 Discontinued Operations**

On August 31, 2012, the Company sold all of the shares of common stock of Agera held by the Company, which represents 57% of the outstanding common stock of Agera, to Rohto Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. for approximately \$1.0 million. Accordingly, all operating results from continuing operations exclude the results for Agera which are presented as discontinued operations for all prior year numbers.

The financial results of Agera are classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations. Summary financial information related to discontinued operations is as follows:

	For the three months ended March 31, 2012
Product sales	\$ 198
Cost of sales	121
Gross profit	77
Operating income	\$ 2
Net loss	\$ (10)

In addition, there are other minimal losses from foreign subsidiaries which are classified as discontinued operations.

#### Note 6 Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The following table contains additional cash flow information for the periods reported.

For the three months ended

## Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

	March 31,	March 31,
	2013	2012
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:		
Non-cash investing and financing activities:		
Accrued preferred stock dividend		54
Conversion of preferred stock into common stock		31

#### Note 7 Inventory

Inventories consist of the following:

	March 31, 2013	nber 31, 012
Raw materials	\$ 345	\$ 326
Work in process	132	151
Total	\$ 477	\$ 477

#### **Note 8 Fair Value Measurements**

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The Company adopted the accounting guidance on fair value measurements for financial assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis. The guidance requires fair value measurements be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e., supported by little or no market activity).

The following fair value hierarchy table presents information about each major category of the Company s financial assets and liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

	Fair value measurement using				
	Quoted prices in active markets (Level 1)	Significant other observable inputs (Level 2)	unobse inp	ficant ervable outs vel 3)	Total
Balance at March 31, 2013					
Liabilities					
Warrant liability	\$	\$	\$	316	\$ 316

	Fair value measurement using			
	Quoted prices in active markets (Level 1)	Significant other observable inputs (Level 2)	Significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)	Total
Balance at December 31, 2012		•		
Liabilities				
Warrant liability	\$	\$	\$ 374	\$ 374

The reconciliation of warrant liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis using unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

## Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

	Warrant	
	Lia	ability
Balance at December 31, 2012	\$	374
Change in fair value of warrant liability		(58)
Balance at March 31, 2013	\$	316

The fair value of the warrant liability is based on Level 3 inputs. For this liability, the Company developed its own assumptions that do not have observable inputs or available market data to support the fair value. See Note 11 for further discussion of the warrant liability.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

The Company believes that the fair values of our current assets and current liabilities approximate their reported carrying amounts. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3.

7

#### Note 9 Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

	March 31, 2013	December 31, 2012
Accrued professional fees	\$ 17	\$ 58
Accrued compensation	155	48
Accrued other	183	388
Total accrued expenses	\$ 355	\$ 494

#### **Note 10-Equity**

#### Preferred stock

The Company is authorized to issue 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges, and restrictions thereof. These rights, preferences and privileges could include dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, liquidation preferences, sinking fund terms and the number of shares constituting any series or the designation of such series, any or all of which may be greater than the rights of common stock. The issuance of the Company s preferred stock could adversely affect the voting power of holders of common stock and the likelihood that such holders will receive dividend payments and payments upon liquidation. In addition, the issuance of preferred stock could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of the Company or other corporate action. There are no shares issued or outstanding as of March 31, 2013. As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, \$0 and \$54, respectively, was accrued for dividends payable. The Company recorded accrued dividends at a rate of 6% per annum on the Series D Preferred for the three months ended March 31, 2013. The Company paid cash of \$0 and \$56 during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

#### **Note 11-Warrants**

The Company accounts for stock warrants as either equity instruments or derivative liabilities depending on the specific terms of the warrant agreement. Stock warrants are accounted for as a derivative in accordance with ASC 815 if the stock warrants contain down-round protection and therefore, do not meet the scope exception for treatment as a derivative. Since down-round protection is not an input into the calculation of the fair value of the warrants, the warrants cannot be considered indexed to the Company s own stock which is a requirement for the scope exception as outlined under ASC 815. The Company will continue to classify the fair value of the warrants that contain down-round protection as a liability until the warrants are exercised, expire or are amended in a way that would no longer require these warrants to be classified as a liability. Effective December 31, 2011, the Company utilized the Monte Carlo simulation valuation method to value the liability-classified warrants until September 30, 2012 when the Company concluded that the Black-Scholes option pricing model was an appropriate valuation method due to the assumption that no future financing would be expected at a price lower than the current exercise price and the majority of the warrants were converted to equity-classified warrants on October 9, 2012.

The following table summarizes outstanding warrants to purchase Common Stock as of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

Number of Warrants					
	As of March 31, 2013	As of December 31, 2012		xercise Price	Expiration Dates
Liability-classified warrants					
Issued in Series B Preferred Stock offering	1,320	1,320	\$	2.50	JulNov. 2015
Issued in Series D Preferred Stock offering	39,800	39,800	\$	2.50	Dec. 2015-Mar. 2016
Issued in Series E Preferred Stock offering	120,000	120,000	\$	2.50	May June 2017
Subtotal	161,120	161,120			

Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Equity-classified warrants				
Issued in June 2011 equity financing	6,113	6,113	\$ 22.50	June 2016
Issued in March 2010 and Preferred Stock offerings	4,209,357	4,209,357	\$ 6.25-7.50	May June 2018
Issued with Convertible Notes	1,125,578	1,125,578	\$ 7.50	June 2018
Issued to placement agents in August 2011 equity				
financing	50,123	50,123	\$ 13.75	August 2016
Issued in August 2011 equity financing	579,759	579,759	\$ 18.75	August 2016
Subtotal	5,970,930	5,970,930		
	,	, ,		
Total	6.132.050	6.132.050		
10111	0,132,030	0,132,030		

There were no warrants exercised for the first quarter of 2013 and 2012.

#### **Liability-classified Warrants**

Effective December 31, 2011, the Company utilized the Monte Carlo simulation valuation method to value the liability classified warrants until September 30, 2012 when the Company concluded that the Black-Scholes option pricing model was an appropriate valuation method due to the assumption that no future financing would be expected at a price lower than the current exercise price and the majority of the warrants were converted to equity-classified warrants on October 5, 2012.

The following table summarizes the calculated aggregate fair values as of the dates indicated along with the assumptions utilized in the Black-Scholes option pricing model for each calculation.

	March 31, 2013	December 31, 2012		
Calculated aggregate value (in thousands)	\$ 316	\$ 374		
Weighted average exercise price per share of warrant	\$ 2.50	\$ 2.50		
Closing price per share of common stock	\$ 3.50	\$ 3.75		
Volatility	64%	70%		
Expected term (years)	3.8	4.0		
Risk-free interest rate	0.51%	0.63%		
Dividend yield	%	Ġ		

Note 12 Equity-based Compensation

Our board of directors adopted the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (Plan) effective September 3, 2009. The Plan is intended to further align the interests of the Company and its stockholders with its employees, including its officers, non-employee directors, consultants and advisors by providing incentives for such persons to exert maximum efforts for the success of the Company. The Plan currently allows for the issuance of up to 1,200,000 shares of the Company s common stock. The types of awards that may be granted under the Plan include options (both nonqualified stock options and incentive stock options), stock appreciation rights, stock awards, stock units, and other stock-based awards. The term of each award is determined by the Board at the time each award is granted, provided that the terms of options may not exceed ten years. The Plan had 623,660 options available for grant as of March 31, 2013.

Total stock-based compensation expense recognized using the straight-line attribution method in the Consolidated Statement of Operations is as follows:

	Three months ended			
	March 31, 2013	March	31, 2012	
Stock option compensation expense for employees and directors	\$ 173	\$	279	
Equity awards for nonemployees issued for services			28	
Total stock-based compensation expense	\$ 173	\$	307	

	Number of shares	Weighted- average exercise price	Weighted- average remaining contractual term (in years)	Aggregate intrinsic value
Outstanding at December 31, 2012	562,025	\$ 18.50	7.0	\$
Granted	198,000	\$ 3.93		
Exercised				
Forfeited	(1.685)	\$ 10.93		

Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Outstanding at March 31, 2013	758,340	\$ 16.33	6.7	\$
Exercisable at March 31, 2013	532.063	\$ 20.83	7 1	\$

The total fair value of shares vested during the three months ended March 31, 2013 was \$0.5 million. As of March 31, 2013, there was \$0.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost, related to non-vested stock options which vest over time. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.3 years. As of March 31, 2013, there was \$0.3 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to performance-based, non-vested consultant options.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, the weighted average fair market value using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model of the options granted was \$2.07 and \$6.00, respectively. The fair market value of the options was computed using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following key weighted average assumptions for the three months ended as of the dates indicated:

	March 31, 2013	March 31, 2012
Expected life (years)	5.0 years	6.0 years
Interest rate	0.9%	2.3%
Dividend yield		
Volatility	69%	60%

## **Note 13 Subsequent Events**

On April 30, 2013, a one-for-twenty-five reverse stock split of the Company s common shares became effective at the opening of business. The Company has been approved for listing on the NYSE MKT. Trading is expected to commence on the NYSE MKT on Friday, May 17, 2013 under the ticker symbol FCSC.

10

#### Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This report contains certain forward-looking statements relating to Fibrocell that is based on management s exercise of business judgment and assumptions made by and information currently available to management. When used in this document, the words anticipate, believe, estimate expect, intend, the facts suggest and words of similar import, are intended to identify any forward-looking statements. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. These statements reflect our current view of future events and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties as noted below. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. Actual events, transactions and results may materially differ from the anticipated events, transactions or results described in such statements. Although we believe that our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that our expectations will materialize. Many factors could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward looking statements. Several of these factors include, without limitation:

whether our clinical human trials relating to the use of autologous cellular therapy applications, in particular, for burn scars and vocal cord scars, and such other indications as we may identify and pursue can be conducted within the timeframe that we expect, whether such trials will yield positive results, or whether additional applications for the commercialization of autologous cellular therapy can be identified by us and advanced into human clinical trials;

our ability to meet requisite regulations or receive regulatory approvals in the United States, and our ability to retain any regulatory approvals that we may obtain; and the absence of adverse regulatory developments in the United States;

our ability to increase our manufacturing capacity and reduce our manufacturing costs through the improvement of our manufacturing process, our ability to validate any such improvements with the relevant regulatory agencies and our ability to accomplish the foregoing on a timely basis, if at all;

new entrance of competitive products or further penetration of existing products in our markets;

the effect on us from adverse publicity related to our products or the company itself;

any adverse claims relating to our intellectual property; and

our dependence on physicians to correctly follow our established protocols for the safe administration of our product.

These factors are not necessarily all of the important factors that could cause actual results of operations to differ materially from those expressed in these forward-looking statements. Other unknown or unpredictable factors also could have material adverse effects on our future results. We cannot assure you that projected results will be achieved.

#### General

We are a commercial-stage autologous cellular therapeutic company focused on the development of innovative products for aesthetic, medical and scientific applications. We have has a pipeline of therapeutic and aesthetic product development programs based on the first Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved cell-based product, LAVIV (azficel-T), in aesthetics, all of which are based on the autologous fibroblast cell. Our clinical and pre-clinical programs include treatments for restrictive burn scars, vocal cord scars, and acne scars. Through our collaboration with Intrexon Corporation, we are working to discover and develop treatments for rare collagen deficient conditions such as recessive dystrophic epidermolysis bullosa.

#### **Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates**

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make significant judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Management bases these significant judgments and estimates on historical experience and other assumptions it believes to be reasonable based upon information presently available. Actual results could differ from those estimates under different assumptions, judgments or conditions. There were no material changes to our critical accounting policies and use of estimates previously disclosed in our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

11

#### **Results of Operations**

Three Months Ended March 31, 2013 compared to the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

Revenue and Cost of Sales. Revenue and cost of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 were comprised of the following:

	Three months ended March 31,		Increase (Decrease)	
	2013 (in tho	2012 usands)	\$000s	%
Total revenue	\$ 26	\$ 16	\$ 10	63%
Cost of sales	2,351	1,553	798	51%
Gross (loss)	\$ (2,325)	\$ (1,537)	\$ (788)	51%

Revenue of less than \$0.1 million was recognized in the first quarter of 2013 for LAVIV. Revenue is booked based on the shipment of cells to the patients for injection of LAVIV. We booked cost of sales of \$2.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013. Cost of sales includes the costs related to the processing of cells for LAVIV, including direct and indirect costs. The cost of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2013 comprised \$1.1 million of compensation related expenses, \$0.9 million of laboratory supplies and other related expenses and \$0.4 million of rent, utilities, amortization and depreciation. The cost of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2012 comprised \$0.8 million of compensation related expenses, \$0.5 million of laboratory supplies and other related expenses and \$0.2 million of rent, utilities, amortization and depreciation. The principal reasons for the relatively small level of revenue as compared to the large cost of sales in this quarter are as follows: (1) Charging for biopsies and injections we are offering complimentary and reduced price biopsies and injections, and (2) Manufacturing complexity and quality control and assurance manufacturing for cell therapy products is difficult as a result of logistical issues, significant manual processing, raw materials consistency and significant quality control and assurance. We significantly increased the selling price of LAVIV on May 1, 2013 in order to more closely align product pricing with our cost structure and our limited manufacturing capacity in 2013.

*Selling, General and Administrative Expense.* Selling, general and administrative expense for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 were comprised of the following:

	Three mor	nths ended ch 31,	Increas (Decrea	
	2013 2012 (in thousands)		\$000s	%
Compensation and related expense	\$ 973	\$ 1,108	\$ (135)	(12%)
External services consulting	213	67	146	218%
Marketing expense	127	1,279	(1,152)	(90%)
Travel	75	207	(132)	(64%)
License fees	166	165	1	0%
Facilities and related expense and other	813	897	(84)	(9%)
Total selling, general and administrative expense	\$ 2,367	\$ 3,723	\$ (1,356)	(36%)

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased \$1.4 million to \$2.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 as compared to \$3.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012. There was a decrease in compensation of \$0.1 million due primarily to the reduction of sales and marketing personnel employed for the three months ended March 31, 2013. Consulting expenses increased by \$0.1 million due to additional legal fees incurred in the three months ended March 31, 2013. There was a decrease in marketing expenses of \$1.2 million as there was increased spending for the initial launch for the three months ended March 31, 2012 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013. License fees remained constant at \$0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012. Facilities and other expenses decreased \$0.1 million.

Research and Development Expense. Research and development expense for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 were comprised of the following:

		Three months ended March 31,		ease ease)
	2013 (in tho	2012 usands)	\$000s	%
Compensation and related expense	\$ 66	\$ 66	\$	%
External services consulting	944	390	554	142%
Lab costs and related expense	201	17	184	1,082%
Facilities and related expense and other	1	6	(5)	(83%)
Total research and development expense	\$ 1,212	\$ 479	\$ 733	153%

Research and development expense increased \$0.7 million to \$1.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 from \$0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012. The increase is due primarily to the increase in consulting fees related to research and development costs incurred in the three months ended March 31, 2013 for restrictive burn scars and recessive dystrophic epidermolysis bullosa, as well as costs to develop manufacturing, cell collection and logistical process improvements.

Change in Revaluation of Warrant Liability. During the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, we recorded non-cash warrant income of less than \$0.1 million and non-cash warrant expense of \$0.5 million in our statements of operations. In the fourth quarter of 2012, more than 98% of the warrants were reclassified to the equity section due to the modification of the warrants as a result of the October 2012 financing.

Change in Revaluation of Derivative Liability. During the three months ended March 31, 2013, there was no revaluation of the derivative liability as our previously outstanding preferred stock was converted to common stock in the fourth quarter of 2012 and the related derivative liability was reclassified to shareholders—deficit as it no longer required the liability classification. During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we recorded non-cash derivative revaluation expense of less than \$0.1 million in our statements of operations.

*Interest Expense*. Interest expense related to our 12.5% notes decreased \$0.2 million to no interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2013 from \$0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012. The 12.5% notes were either paid or converted into common stock with the close of the October 2012 financing.

Deferred tax benefit. During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we recorded a deferred tax benefit of \$2.5 million due to the favorable impact to the computation of the valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax asset as a result of the reclassification of the intangible assets recognized upon emergence from bankruptcy as a finite-lived intangible asset. The restatement freed-up the related deferred tax liability by allowing it to offset our net deferred tax asset before applying the valuation allowance.

Loss from Discontinued Operations. The net loss from discontinued operations for the three months ended March 31, 2013 remained relatively constant to the net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2012.

*Net Loss.* Net loss increased approximately \$1.9 million to a net loss of \$5.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013, as compared to a net loss of \$4.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012 primarily due to the deferred tax benefit realized in the three months ending March 31, 2012, offset by the increase in cost of goods sold and increase in research and development expenses for the three months ending March 31, 2013.

## **Liquidity and Capital Resources**

The following table summarizes our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012:

Three Months Ended March 31,

Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

	2013		2012
	(in thousands)		
Statement of Cash Flows Data:			
Total cash used in:			
Operating activities	\$ (5,059)	\$	(6,309)
Investing activities	\$ (100)	\$	(221)
Financing activities	\$	\$	(91)

*Operating Activities.* Cash used in operating activities during the three months ended March 31, 2013 amounted to \$5.1 million, a decrease of \$1.3 million over the three months ended March 31, 2012. The decrease in our cash used in operating activities over the prior year is primarily due to an decrease in net losses (adjusted for non-cash items) of less than \$0.1 million in addition to operating cash inflows from changes in operating assets and liabilities

*Investing Activities.* Cash used in investing activities amounted to \$0.1 million and \$0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, due to the purchase of equipment for the lab facility in Exton, Pennsylvania.

*Financing Activities.* There was no cash provided or used for financing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2013. There was \$0.1 million cash used in financing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2012 for the payment of dividends.

Working Capital

As of March 31, 2013, we had cash and cash equivalents of \$26.2 million and working capital of \$26.0 million. As of May 15, 2013, the Company has a subscription receivable of \$2.0 million due from one foreign investor related to the October 2012 financing. We expect to have sufficient cash to operate for at least the next twelve months. However, we may require additional financing to complete the burn scars and vocal scars clinical trials we intend to commence in 2013. In addition, we expect we will require additional financing prior to our business achieving significant net cash from operations. We would likely raise such additional capital through the issuance of our equity or equity-linked securities, which may result in dilution to our investors, or by entering into strategic partnerships. Our ability to raise additional capital is dependent on, among other things, the state of the financial markets at the time of any proposed offering. To secure funding through strategic partnerships, it may be necessary to partner one or more of our technologies at an earlier stage of development, which could cause us to share a greater portion of the potential future economic value of those programs with our partners. There is no assurance that additional funding, through any of the aforementioned means, will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If adequate capital cannot be obtained on a timely basis and on satisfactory terms, our operations could be materially negatively impacted.

#### **Contractual Obligations**

During the three month period ended March 31, 2013, there have been no material changes to our contractual obligations outside the ordinary course of business from those specified in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

## Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates or interest rates.

#### Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

We do not believe that we have significant foreign exchange rate risk at March 31, 2013.

We do not enter into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

#### Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

## Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act )) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on our evaluation under the framework in *Internal Control Integrated Framework*, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was ineffective as of March 31, 2013 due to the accounting for the deferred tax liability in 2012 as discussed in more detail below.

Except as described in Item 9A in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, and discussed below, there was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the first quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

## Edgar Filing: Fibrocell Science, Inc. - Form 10-Q

#### **Material Weakness**

When we emerged from bankruptcy in September 2009, an intangible asset was recorded in respect of our primary clinical study on LAVIV, and the related deferred tax liability was also recorded. In the first quarter of 2012, the Company commercially launched LAVIV and commenced generating revenue. As a result, the intangible asset was considered a finite-lived intangible asset and we commenced amortizing it over 12 years, and also initiated the amortization of the related deferred tax liability over the same period. In connection with the finalization of our audit for the year ended December 31, 2012, it came to our attention that the accounting treatment adopted for the deferred tax liability related to the intangible asset in the first quarter of 2012 and for the subsequent second and third quarters of 2012 was incorrect. Rather than the deferred tax liability being a permanent timing difference for the calculation of deferred tax, we concluded that it would have been more appropriately treated as a temporary timing difference. The impact of this adjustment is that the full deferred tax liability of \$2.5 million should have been released to the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the first quarter of 2012.

As a result of this adjustment, it was determined that a control deficiency that constitutes a material deficiency in the design and operation of our internal control over financial reporting in connection with deferred tax liability relating to the intangible asset was present.

In the past management has utilized external accounting and taxation advisors to assist us. However, notwithstanding that the specific issue that caused the material weakness no longer exists as a result of the adjustment noted above, due to the fact that an adjustment was still required, we will reconsider the appropriate selection of our external advisors that we utilize in the future.

14

#### PART II OTHER INFORMATION

## **Item 1. Legal Proceedings**

None

#### Item 1A. Risk Factors

There were no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on April 1, 2013.

## Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

We had no unregistered sales of equity securities during the period covered by this report that have not been previously reported on Form 8-K.

#### Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

#### Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not Applicable

#### **Item 5. Other Information**

None

#### Item 6. Exhibits

## (a) Exhibits

<b>EXHIBIT NO.</b> 3.1	IDENTIFICATION OF EXHIBIT  Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed December 12, 2012 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 of the Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2012)
3.2	Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed December 12, 2012 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 of the Form 8-K filed on April 29, 2013)
31.1	Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2	Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

15

## **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

FIBROCELL SCIENCE, INC.

By: /s/ Declan Daly Declan Daly

Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 15, 2013

16